

# REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL CONSULTANCY FOR CARBON CREDITS UNDER ADP SCHEME TITLED "SOLAR HOME SYSTEM (SHS) FOR POOR FAMILIES IN SINDH UNDER SPECIAL INITIATIVES

September, 2025

Project Management Unit Solar Home System (Off-Grid) Energy Department Government of Sindh

# **Contents**

Section 1: Letter of Invitation.	3
Letter of Invitation	3
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL	4
Section 2: Instructions to Consultants	6
DATA SHEET	. 15
Basic Eligibility Criteria (Preliminary Screening)	. 17
Section 3: Technical Proposal Standard Forms.	. 21
FORM TECH-1. TECHNICAL PROPOSAL SUBMISSION FORM	. 21
FORM TECH-2. CONSULTANT'S ORGANIZATION AND EXPERIENCE	. 22
FORM TECH-3. COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS ON THE TERMS OF REFERENCE AND ON COUNTER PART STAFF AND FACILITIES TO BE PROVIDED BY THE PA	
FORM TECH-4. DESCRIPTION OF APPROACH, METHODOLOGY AND	26
FORM TECH-5. TEAM COMPOSITION AND TASK ASSIGNMENTS	. 27
FORM TECH-6. CURRICULUM VITAE (CV) FOR PROPOSED PROFESSIONAL STAFF	28
FORM FIN-1. FINANCIAL PROPOSAL SUBMISSION FORM	30
FORM FIN-2: SUMMARY OF COSTS	31
APPENDIX. FINANCIAL NEGOTIATIONS - BREAKDOWN OF REMUNERATION RATES	32
SECTION 4: TERMS OF REFERENCE	36
Section 5: Standard forms of Contract	39
General Conditions of Contract	39
Special Conditions of Contract	48
Appendix: (INTEGRITY PACT)	. 54
CONTRACT FORM (draft)	. 56

#### **Section 1: Letter of Invitation.**

	Letter of Invitation
File No. /	
[Karachi, Pakistan.	

#### Dear Mr./Ms.:

- 1. Project Management Unit, Solar Home System (Off-Grid), Energy Department, Govt. of Sindh (hereinafter called "Procuring Agency") now invites proposals to provide the following services for "Carbon Credits under ADP Scheme titled "Solar Home System for Poor Families (Off-Grid) in Sindh under Special Initiatives". More details on the services are provided in the **Terms of Reference**. It is not permissible to transfer this invitation to any other firm.
- 3. A firm will be selected under *Quality & Cost Based Selection Method (QCBS)* with 80% Technical and 20 % Financial scoring weightage and procedures described in this RFP, in accordance with the SPPR 2010 (amended to date).
- 4. This RFP includes the following documents:

Section 1 - Letter of Invitation

Section 2 - Instructions to Consultants (including Data sheet) Section 3

- Technical Proposal - Standard Forms

Section 4 - Financial Proposal - Standard Forms Section

5 - Terms of Reference

Section 6 - Standard Forms of Contract

Yours sincerely,

Mr. Zainul Abadin Ansari,
Project Director,
Solar Home System (Off-Grid),
Energy Department,
Government of Sindh
3<sup>rd</sup> floor, State Life Building No. 3,
Dr. Ziauddin Ahmed Road,
Opposite CM House,
Karachi.

#### **REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL**



Ph: 02199207144

No: PMU/SHS(Off-Grid)/SHS/5/2025 GOVERNMENT OF SINDH Project Management Unit Solar Home System (Off-Grid) ENERGY DEPARTMENT

Karachi. Dated: 23<sup>rd</sup> September, 2025

# REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (CONSULTING SERVICES – FIRM SELECTION)

The Project Management Unit, Solar Home System (Off-Grid) the Energy Department, is seeking to engage the services of a qualified and experienced Carbon Credits Consultancy Firm to support the integration of Solar Home System (SHS) for Poor Families (Off-Grid) initiative into internationally recognized carbon finance mechanisms. The objective is to quantify, certify, and monetize Greenhouse Gas (GHG) emission reductions resulting from the deployment of Solar Home System kits in Off-Grid households. By replacing conventional fossil fuel-based energy sources—such as diesel generators, kerosene lamps, and non-renewable grid electricity—the project directly contributes to climate mitigation. To harness this impact, the Government intends to pursue accreditation under globally recognized carbon standards such as: - Verified Carbon Standard (Verra/VCS) — Gold Standard for the Global Goals - Clean Development Mechanism (if applicable), or other voluntary carbon market platforms

#### **Description of the Assignment:**

The consultancy assignment shall be undertaken as a single integrated project covering the full cycle from registration with international carbon standards through to the monetization of verified carbon credits. The consultant will be responsible for delivering all technical groundwork required for international registration, including prefeasibility, baseline assessments, methodology selection, market analysis, preparation of registration-ready documentation, and engagement with validation/verification bodies.

Following registration, the project will continue seamlessly into the monetization stage, where the consultant will undertake verification, issuance, commercialization, and sale of carbon credits in international markets. The financial structure for this stage will be performance-based, with the consultant entitled to an agreed share of revenues from the sale of carbon credits. The Government of Sindh's share of revenues will be determined through the financial proposal, with higher percentages retained by the Government receiving preference.

#### **Shortlisting Criteria:**

- i. A recognized, well reputed, top tier Carbon Credit Consulting Firm(s)/consultants/consortium possessing proven experience in relevant field.
- ii. Valid registration with Security & Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) or any other similar registration body, tax authorities (Federal & Provincial).

iii. Having operational office(s) in Sindh preferably in Karachi.

Method of Selection: Qualify and Cost Based Selection Method (QCBS)

#### Request for Proposal (RFP) Document:

Issuance: RFP document can be obtained online at EPADs or from Energy Department's website i.e. <a href="https://www.sindhenergy.gov.pk">www.sindhenergy.gov.pk</a> till 21st October, 2025 till 11:00 am.

**Submission:** RFP completed in all aspects and attached with relevant documents/certificates must be submitted online at EPADs on or before **21**<sup>st</sup> **October, 2025 till 3:30 pm.** Rs.5000/- cash as fee be submitted at the address given below as RFP fee.

Opening: RFP will be opened on 21st October, 2025 at 4:00 pm.

#### Place of Submission, Inquiries & Opening:

**Address:** Project Management Unit, Solar Home System (Off-Grid), Energy Department, Govt. of Sindh located at Energy Department, 3<sup>rd</sup> Floor, State Life, Building No. 3, Dr. Ziauddin Ahmed Road, Opp. CM House, Karachi.

**Telephone Number:** 02199207162, **Fax:** 02199206276

#### **Terms & Conditions:**

Under the following conditions bid will be rejected:

- i. Conditional and telegraphic RFPs;
- ii. RFPs received after specified date and time;
- iii. RFPs submitted by black listed firms; and
- iv. Incomplete RFP s in any expect.

Project Management Unit, Solar Home System (Off-Grid), Energy Department, Govt. of Sindh reserves the right to accept or reject any/ all applications in accordance with the provisions given in SPP Rules, 2010 (Amended to date).

Deputy Director (T)
Solar Home System (Off-Grid)

#### **Section 2: Instructions to Consultants**

#### 1. Definitions

- (a) "Procuring Agency (PA)" means the department with which the selected Consultant signs the Contract for the Services.
- (b) "Consultant" means a professional who can study, design, organize, evaluate and manage projects or assess, evaluate and provide specialist advice or give technical assistance for making or drafting policies, institutional reforms and includes private entities, consulting firms, legal advisors, engineering firms, construction managers, management firms, procurement agents, inspection agents, auditors, international and multinational organizations, investment and merchant banks, universities, research institutions, government agencies, nongovernmental organizations, and individuals
- (c) "Contract" means an agreement enforceable by law and includes General and Special Conditions of the contract.
- (d) "Data Sheet" means such part of the Instructions to Consultants that is used to reflect specific assignment conditions.
- (e) "Day" means calendar day including holiday.
- (f) "Government" means the Government of Sindh.
- (g) "Instructions to Consultants" (Section 2 of the RFP) means the document which provides shortlisted Consultants with all information needed to prepare their Proposals.
- (h) "LOI" (Section 1 of the RFP) means the Letter of Invitation sent by the procuring agency to the Consultant.
- (i) "Proposal" means the Technical Proposal and the Financial Proposal.
- (j) "RFP" means the Request For Proposal prepared by the procuring Agency for the selection of Consultants.
- (k) "Sub-Consultant" means any person or entity to whom the Consultant subcontracts any part of the Services.
- (l) "Terms of Reference" (TOR) means the document included in the RFP as Section 5 which explains the objectives, scope of work, activities, tasks to be performed, respective responsibilities of the procuring agency and the Consultant, and expected results and deliverables of the assignment.

#### 2. Introduction

- 2.1 The Procuring agency named in the Data Sheet will select a consulting firm/organization (the Consultant) from those listed in the Letter of Invitation, in accordance with the method of selection specified in the Data Sheet.
- 2.2 The eligible Consultants (shortlisted if so) are invited to submit a Technical Proposal and a

Financial Proposal, or a Technical Proposal only, as specified in the Data Sheet. The Proposal will be the basis for contract negotiations and ultimately for a signed Contract with the selected Consultant.

- 2.3 Consultants should familiarize themselves with rules / conditions and take them into account while preparing their Proposals. Consultants are encouraged to attend a pre-proposal conference if one is specified in the Data Sheet. Attending the pre-proposal conference is, however optional. Consultants may liaise with procuring agency's representative named in the Data Sheet for gaining better insight into the assignment.
- 2.4 Consultants shall bear all costs associated with the preparation and submission of their proposals and contract negotiation. The Procuring Agency reserves the right to annul the selection process at any time prior to Contract award, without thereby incurring any liability to the Consultants.
- 2.5 Procuring Agency may provide facilities and inputs as specified in Data Sheet.

#### 3. Conflict of Interest

- 3.1.1 Consultants are required to provide professional, objective, and impartial advice and holding the Procuring Agency interest paramount. They shall strictly avoid conflict with other assignments or their own corporate interest. Consultants have an obligation to disclose any situation of actual or potential conflict that impacts their capacity to serve the best interest of the Procuring Agency, or that may reasonably be perceived as having such effect. Failure to disclose said situations may lead to the disqualification of the Consultant or the termination of its Contract.
- 3.1.2 Without limitation on the generality of the foregoing, Consultants, and any of their affiliates, shall be considered to have a conflict of interest and shall not be recruited, under any of the circumstances set forth below:
- (i) A consultant that has been engaged by the procuring agency to provide goods, works or services other than consulting services for a project, any of its affiliates, shall be disqualified from providing consulting services related to those goods, works or services. Conversely, a firm hired to provide consulting services for the preparation or implementation of a project, any of its affiliates, shall be disqualified from subsequently providing goods or works or services other than consulting services resulting from or directly related to the firm's consulting services for such preparation or implementation.
- (ii) A Consultant (including its Personnel and Sub- Consultants) or any of its affiliates shall not be hired for any assignment that, by its nature, may be in conflict with another assignment of the Consultant to be executed for the same or for another Procuring Agency.
- (iii) A Consultant (including its Personnel and Sub- Consultants) that has a business or family relationship with a member of the Procuring Agency's staff who is directly or indirectly involved in any part of (i) the preparation of the Terms of Reference of the assignment,
- (ii) the selection process for such assignment, or (iii) supervision of the Contract, may not be awarded a Contract, unless the conflict stemming from this relationship has been resolved.

#### **Conflicting Relationships**

- 3.2 Government officials and civil servants may be hired as consultants only if:
- (i) They are on leave of absence without pay;
- (ii) They are not being hired by the agency they were working for, six months prior to going on leave; and
- (iii) Their employment would not give rise to any conflict of interest.

#### 4. Fraud and Corruption

It is Government's policy that Consultants under the contract(s), observe the highest standard of ethics during the procurement and execution of such contracts. In pursuit of this policy, the Procuring Agency follows the instructions contained in Sindh Public procurement Rules 2010 which defines:

"corrupt and fraudulent practices" includes the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting, directly or indirectly of anything of value to influence the act of another party for wrongful gain or any act or omission ,including misrepresentation, that knowingly or recklessly misleads or attempt mislead a party to obtain a financial or other benefit or to avoid an obligation;

Under Rule 35 of SPPR2010, "The PA can inter-alia blacklist Bidders found to be indulging in corrupt or fraudulent practices. Such barring action shall be duly publicized and communicated to the SPPRA. Provided that any supplier or contractor who is to be blacklisted shall be accorded adequate opportunity of being heard".

#### 5. Integrity Pact

Pursuant to Rule 89 of SPPR 2010 Consultant undertakes to sign an Integrity pact in accordance with prescribed format attached hereto for all the procurements estimated to exceed Rs. 2.5 million. (Annex- A)

#### 6. Eligible Consultants

- 6.1 If short listing process has been undertaken through REOI, as outlined under Rule 73 and 74 of SPPR2010 for the Contract(s) for which these RFP documents are being issued, those firms in case of Joint Ventures with the same partner(s) and Joint Venture structure that had been prequalified are eligible.
- 6.2 Short listed consultants emerging from request of expression of interest are eligible.

#### 7. Eligibility of Sub- Consultants

A shortlisted Consultant would not be allowed to associate with Consultants who have failed to qualify the short listing process.

#### 8. Only one Proposal

Shortlisted Consultants may only submit one proposal. If a Consultant submits or participates in more than one proposal, such proposals shall be disqualified. Participation of the same Sub- Consultant, including individual experts, to more than one proposal is not allowed.

#### 9. Proposal Validity

- 9.1 The Data Sheet indicates Proposals validity that shall not be more than 90 days in case of National Competitive Bidding (NCB) and 120 days in case of International competitive Bidding (ICB). During this period, Consultants shall maintain the availability of Professional staff nominated in the Proposal. The Procuring Agency will make its best effort to complete negotiations within this period. Should the need arise; however, the Procuring Agency may request Consultants to extend the validity period of their proposals. Consultants who agree to such extension shall confirm that they maintain the availability of the Professional staff nominated in the Proposal, or in their confirmation of extension of validity of the Proposal, Consultants may submit new staff in replacement, who would be considered in the final evaluation for contract award. Consultants who do not agree have the right to refuse to extend the validity of their Proposals.
- 9.2 Consultants shall submit required bid security along with financial proposal defined in the data sheet (which shall not be less than one percent and shall not exceed five percent of bid amount).

#### 10. Clarification and Amendment in RFP Documents

- 10.1 Consultants may request for a clarification of contents of the bidding document in writing, and procuring agency shall respond to such queries in writing within three calendar days, provided they are received at least five calendar days prior to the date of opening of proposal. The procuring agency shall communicate such response to all parties who have obtained RFP document without identifying the source of inquiry. Should the PA deem it necessary to amend the RFP as a result of a clarification, it shall do so.
- 10.2 At any time before the submission of Proposals, the Procuring Agency may amend the RFP by issuing an addendum/ corrigendum in writing. The addendum shall be sent to all Consultants and will be binding on them. Consultants shall acknowledge receipt of all amendments. To give Consultants reasonable time in which to take an amendment into account in their Proposals the Procuring Agency may, if the amendment is substantial, extend the deadline for the submission of Proposals.

#### 11. Preparation of Proposals

- 11.1 In preparing their Proposal, Consultants are expected to examine in detail the documents comprising the RFP. Material deficiencies (deviation from scope, experience and qualification of personnel) in providing the information requested may result in rejection of a Proposal.
- 11.2 The estimate number of professional staff months or the budget required for executing the assignment should be shown in the data sheet, but not both. However, proposal shall be based on the professional staff month or budget estimated by the consultant.

#### 12. Language

The Proposal as well as all related correspondence exchanged by the Consultants and the Procuring Agency shall be written in English However it is desirable that the firm's Personnel have a working knowledge of the national and regional languages of Islamic Republic of Pakistan.

#### 13. Technical Proposal Format and Content

- 13.1 While preparing the Technical Proposal, consultants must give particular attention to the following:
- (i) If a consultant considers that it does not have all the expertise for the assignment, it may obtain a full range of expertise by associating with individual consultant(s) and/or other firms or entities in a joint venture or sub- consultancy, as appropriate. The international consultants are encouraged to seek the participation of local consultants by entering into a joint venture with, or subcontracting part of the assignment to, national consultants.
- (ii) For assignments on a staff-time basis, the estimated number of professional staff-months is given in the Data Sheet. The proposal shall, however, be based on the number of professional staff-months estimated by the firm. For fixed-budget-based assignments, the available budget is given in the Data Sheet, and the Financial Proposal shall not exceed this budget.
- (iii) It is desirable that the majority of the key professional staff proposed be permanent employees of the firm or have an extended and stable working relationship with it.
- (iv) Proposed professional staff must, at a minimum, have the experience indicated in the Data Sheet, preferably working under similar geographical condition.
- (v) Alternative professional staff shall not be proposed, and only one curriculum vitae (CV) shall submitted for each position.
- 13.2 The Technical Proposal shall provide the following information using the attached Standard Forms (Section 3):
- (i) A brief description of the consultant organization and an outline of recent experience on assignments (Section 3B) of a similar nature. For each assignment, the outline should indicate, inter alia, the profiles of the staff, duration of the assignment, contract amount, and firm's involvement.
- (ii) Any comments or suggestions on the Terms of Reference and on the data, a list of services, and facilities to be provided by the PA (Section 3C).
- (iii) The list of the proposed staff team by specialty, the tasks that would be assigned to each staff team member, and their timing (Section 3E).
- (iv) CVs recently signed by the proposed professional staff and the authorized representative submitting the proposal (Section 3F). Key information should include number of years working for the consultant and degree of responsibility held in various assignments during the last

(PA may give number of years as per their requirement) years.

- (v) Estimates of the total staff input (professional and support staff; staff time) needed to carry out the assignment, supported by bar chart diagrams showing the time proposed for each professional staff team member (Sections 3E and 3G).
- (vi) A detailed description of the proposed methodology, work plan for performing the assignment, staffing, and monitoring of training, if the Data Sheet specifies training as a major component of the assignment (Section 3D).
- (vii) Any additional information requested in the Data Sheet.

13.3 The Technical Proposal shall not include any financial information.

#### 14. Financial Proposals

14.1 The Financial Proposal shall be prepared using the attached Standard Forms (Section 4). It shall list all costs associated with the assignment, including (a) remuneration for staff (in the field and at the Consultants' office), and (b) reimbursable expenses indicated in the Data Sheet (if applicable). Alternatively Consultant may provide their own list of cost. If appropriate, these costs should be broken down by activity. All activities and items described in the Technical Proposal must be priced separately; activities and items described in the Technical Proposal but not priced, shall be assumed to be included in the prices of other activities or items.

#### 15. Taxes

15.1 The Consultant will be subject to all admissible taxes including stamp duty and service charges at a rate prevailing on the date of contract agreement unless exempted by relevant tax authority.

#### 16. Submission, Receipt, and Opening of Proposals

- 16.1 Proposal shall contain no interlineations or overwriting. Submission letters for both Technical and Financial Proposals should respectively be in the format of TECH-1 of Section 3, and FIN-1 of Section 4. All pages of the original Technical and Financial Proposals will be initialed by an authorized representative of the Consultants (Individual Consultant). The authorization shall be in the form of a written power of attorney accompanying the Proposal
- 16.2 All required copies of the Technical Proposal are to be made from the original. If there are discrepancies between the original and the copies of the Technical Proposal, the original governs.
- 16.3 The original and all copies of the Technical Proposal shall be placed in a sealed envelope clearly marked "TECHNICAL PROPOSAL" Similarly, the original Financial Proposal (if required under the selection method indicated in the Data Sheet) shall be placed in a sealed envelope clearly marked "FINANCIAL PROPOSAL" followed by name of the assignment, and with a warning "DO NOT OPEN WITH THE TECHNICAL PROPOSAL."

If the Financial Proposal is not submitted in a separate sealed envelope duly marked as indicated above, this will constitute grounds for declaring the Proposal non-responsive.

16.4 The Proposals must be sent to the address indicated in the Data Sheet and received by the PA no later than the time and the date indicated in the Data Sheet, or any extension to this date. Any proposal received by the PA after the deadline for submission shall be returned unopened. In order to avoid any delay arising from the postal or PA's internal dispatch workings, Consultants should ensure that proposals to be sent through couriers should reach a day before the deadline for submission.

#### 17. Proposal Evaluation

17.1 From the time the Proposals are opened to the time the Contract is awarded, the Consultants should not contact the PA on any matter related to its Technical and/or Financial Proposal. Any effort

by Consultants to influence the PA in the examination, evaluation, ranking of Proposals, and recommendation for award of Contract may result in the rejection of the Consultants' Proposal.

Evaluators of Technical Proposals shall have no access to the Financial Proposals until the technical evaluation is concluded.

#### 18. Evaluation of Technical Proposals

18.1 The evaluation committee shall evaluate the Technical Proposals on the basis of their responsiveness to the Terms of Reference, applying the evaluation criteria, sub-criteria, and point system specified in the Data Sheet. Each responsive Proposal will be given a technical score (St). A Proposal shall be rejected at this stage if it fails to achieve the minimum technical score indicated in the Data Sheet.

In the case of Quality-Based Selection, Selection Based on Consultant's Qualifications, and Single-Source Selection, the highest ranked consultant or firm selected on a single-source basis is invited to negotiate its proposal and the contract on the basis of the Technical Proposal and the Financial Proposal submitted.

# Public Opening and Evaluation of Financial Proposals: (LCS, QCBS, and Fixed Budget Selection Methods Only)

18.2 After the technical evaluation is completed, the PA shall notify in writing Consultants that have secured the minimum qualifying marks, the date, time and location, allowing a reasonable time, for opening the Financial Proposals. Consultants' attendance at the opening of Financial Proposals is optional.

Financial proposals of those consultants who failed to secure minimum qualifying marks shall be returned un opened.

#### 19. Evaluation of Financial Proposals

- 19.1 Financial Proposals shall be opened publicly in the presence of the Consultants' representatives who choose to attend. The name of the Consultants and the technical scores of the Consultants shall be read aloud. The Financial Proposal of the Consultants who met the minimum qualifying mark will then be inspected to confirm that they have remained sealed and unopened. These Financial Proposals shall be then opened, and the total prices read aloud and recorded. Copy of the record shall be sent to all Consultants.
- 19.2 The Evaluation Committee will correct any computational errors. When correcting computational errors, in case of discrepancy between a partial amount and the total amount, or between word and figures the formers will prevail. In addition to the above corrections, activities and items described in the Technical Proposal but not priced, shall be assumed to be included in the prices of other activities or items.
- 19.3 In case of **Least Cost Selection LCS Method**, the bid found to be the lowest evaluated bid shall be accepted.
- 19.4 **In case of Quality and Cost Based Selection QCBS Method** the lowest evaluated Financial Proposal (Fm) will be given the maximum financial score (Sf) of 100 points. The financial scores

- (Sf) of the other Financial Proposals will be computed as indicated in the Data Sheet. Proposals will be ranked according to their combined technical (St) and financial (Sf) scores using the weights (T = the weight given to the Technical Proposal; P = the weight given to the Financial Proposal; <math>T + P = the the theorem 1) indicated in the Data Sheet: S = the the theorem 2 The firm achieving the highest combined technical and financial score will be invited for negotiations.
- 19.5 In the case of Fixed-Budget and Quality Based Selection, the Procuring Agency will select the firm that submitted the highest ranked Technical Proposal.

#### 20. Negotiations

20.1 Negotiations will be held at the date and address indicated in the Data Sheet. The invited Consultant will, as a pre-requisite for attendance at the negotiations, confirm availability of all Professional staff. Failure in satisfying such requirements may result in the PA proceeding to negotiate with the next-ranked Consultant. Representatives conducting negotiations on behalf of the Consultant must have written authority to negotiate and conclude a Contract.

#### 21. Technical negotiations

21.1 Technical Negotiations will include a discussion of the Technical Proposal, the proposed technical approach and methodology, work plan, organization and staffing, and any suggestions made by the Consultant to improve the Terms of Reference. The PA and the Consultants will finalize the Terms of Reference, staffing schedule, work schedule, logistics, and reporting. These documents will then be incorporated in the Contract as "Description of Services". Minutes of negotiations, which will be signed by the PA and the Consultant, will become part of Contract Agreement.

#### 22. Financial negotiations

22.1 If applicable, it is the responsibility of the Consultant, before starting financial negotiations, to contact the local tax authorities to determine the tax amount to be paid by the Consultant under the Contract. The financial negotiations will include a clarification (if any) of the firm's tax liability, and the manner in which it will be reflected in the Contract; and will reflect the agreed technical modifications in the cost of the services. Consultants will provide the PA with the information on remuneration rates described in the Appendix attached to Section 4 (i.e. Financial Proposal - Standard Forms of this RFP.

#### 23. Availability of Professional staff/experts

23.1 Having selected the Consultant on the basis of, among other things, an evaluation of proposed Professional staff, the PA expects to negotiate a Contract on the basis of the Professional staff named in the Proposal. Before contract negotiations, the PA will require assurances that the Professional staff will be actually available. The PA will not consider substitutions during contract negotiations unless both parties agree that undue delay in the selection process makes such substitution unavoidable or for reasons such as death or medical incapacity. If this is not the case and if it is established that Professional staff were offered in the proposal without confirming their availability, the Consultant may be disqualified. Any proposed substitute shall have equivalent or better qualifications and experience than the original candidate and be submitted by the Consultant within the period of time specified in the letter of invitation to negotiate.

#### 24. Award of Contract

- 24.1 After completing negotiations, the Procuring Agency shall award the Contract to the selected Consultant and within seven of the award of contract, Procuring Agency shall publish on the website of the Authority and on its own website, if such a website exists, the result of the bidding process, identifying the bid through procuring identifying number, if any and the following information, evaluation report, form of contract and letter of award, bill of quantity or schedule of requirement, as the case may be.
- 24.2 After publishing of award of contract consultant required to submit a performance security at the rate indicated in date sheet.
- 24.3 The Consultant is expected to commence the assignment on the date and at the location specified in the Data Sheet.

#### 25. Confidentiality

Information relating to evaluation of Proposals and recommendations concerning awards shall not be disclosed to the Consultants who submitted the Proposals or to other persons not officially concerned with the process, until the publication of the award of Contract. The undue use by any Consultant of confidential information related to the process may result in the rejection of its Proposal.

#### **DATA SHEET**

1.1 Name of the Assignment is: Consultancy Services for Carbon Credits of Solar Home System (Off-Grid) Initiative.

The Name of the Procuring Agency's (PA's) official (s):

Mr. Zainul Abadin Ansari, Project Director, Solar Home System (Off-Grid), Energy Department, Govt. of Sindh.

Address: Energy Department, 3<sup>rd</sup> Floor, State Life Building # 3, Dr. Ziauddin Ahmed Road, Opposite CM house, Karachi, Pakistan.

Telephone: +92 21 99207144, Facsimile: +92 21 99206276.

- 1.2 The method of selection is: Quality & Cost Based Selection Method (QCBS)
- 1.3 Financial Proposal to be submitted together with Technical Proposal: Yes
- 1.4 The PA will provide the following inputs and facilities: N/A
- 1.5 The Proposal submission: Online at EPADs and at Project Management Unit, Solar Home System (Off-Grid) at Energy Department, Government of Sindh, 3<sup>rd</sup> floor, State Life Building # 3, Dr. Ziauddin Ahmed Road, Opposite CM house, Karachi, Pakistan. Proposals must be submitted no later than the following date and time: 21<sup>st</sup> October, 2025 at 3:30 pm and opening of the technical proposal on same date at 4:00 pm.
- 1.6 Expected date for commencement of consulting services <u>28<sup>th</sup> December 2025</u> at Karachi, Pakistan.
- 9.1 Proposals validity that shall not be more than 90 days.
- 10.1 Clarifications may be requested not later than five days before the submission date. The address for requesting clarifications is: Project Management Unit, Solar Home System (Off-Grid), Energy Department, Government of Sindh, at Energy Department 3<sup>rd</sup> floor, State Life Building # 3, Dr. Ziauddin Ahmed Road, Opposite CM house, Karachi, Pakistan. Telephone: +92 21 99207144 Facsimile: +92 21 99206276.
- The Proposal as well as all related correspondence exchanged by the Consultants and the Procuring Agency shall be written in English. However, it is desirable that the firm's Personnel have a working knowledge of the national and regional languages of Islamic Republic of Pakistan.
- 6.1 Shortlisted Consultants may associate with other shortlisted Consultants: NA
- 11.2 The estimated number of professional staff-months required for the assignment is: NA
- 13.1 The format of the Technical Proposal to be submitted is: FTP
- 13.2 Training is a specific component of this assignment: No

- 14.1 [List the applicable Reimbursable expenses in foreign and in local currency. A sample list is provided below for guidance: items that are not applicable should be deleted, others may be added. If the PA wants to define ceilings for unit prices of certain Reimbursable expenses, such ceilings should be indicated in this Section]: NA
- (1) A per diem allowance in respect of Personnel of the Consultant for every day in which the Personnel shall be absent from the home office and, as applicable, outside the beneficiary country for purposes of the Services;
- (2) Cost of necessary travel, including transportation of the Personnel by the most appropriate means of transport and the most direct practicable route;
- (3) oCst of office accommodation, investigations and surveys;
- (4) Cost of applicable international or local communications such as the use of telephone and facsimile required for the purpose of Consulting Services;
- (5) Cost, rental and freight of any instruments or equipment required to be provided by the Consultants for the purposes of Consulting Services;
- (6) Cost of printing and dispatching of the reports to be produced for Consulting Services;
- (7) other allowances where applicable and provisional or fixed sums (if any); and
- (8) cost of such further items required for purposes of the Services not covered in the foregoing.
- 15.1 Amounts payable by the PA to the Consultant under the contract to be subject to local taxation, stamp duty and service charges, if applicable: **Yes**
- 6.3 Consultants to state local cost in the national currency (in case of ICB only): Yes
- 16.2 Consultant must submit one original, four copies & a soft copy in USB of the Technical Proposal only, and the original of the Financial Proposal.

#### Note:

In case of Consortium of firms, the Technical Proposal shall be accompanied by a certified true copy of the Consortium Agreement that shall contain the following requirements:

- (i) The Date and place of signing the Consortium Agreement;
- (ii) Purpose of Consortium (must include the details of contract scope for which the Consortium has been invited to bid);
- (iii) A clear and definite description of the proposed administrative arrangements for the management and execution of the Assignment (it is expected that Consortium's Lead Member would be authorized to incur liabilities and to receive instructions and payments for and on behalf of the Consortium);
- (iv) Delineation of duties, responsibilities and scope of work to be undertaken by each along with resources committed by Consortium's each member for the proposed services;
- (v) An undertaking that the firms are severally liable to the Procuring Agency for the performance of the services;

- (vi) Duties, responsibilities and powers of the Lead Member; and
- (vii) The authorized representative of the Consortium

## 13.1 Evaluation Criteria:

# **Basic Eligibility Criteria (Preliminary Screening)**

Checklist:

S/No.	Item	Status (Yes/No)
1.	Top tier Carbon Credit Consultancy Firm/Consortium (in the form of a joint venture and/or a sub-consultancy having technical, financial and legal expertise. In case of joint venture, all the partners in the joint venture shall be jointly and severally liable for the entire contract, if selected)	
2.	Provable experience in the field.	
	For a consortium to be eligible, the relevant experience of the lead member and other consortium members shall be considered collectively. Each eligibility requirement must be fulfilled by at least one consortium member firm. The experience of every consortium member firm shall be provided as per Form-TECH 2(B), along with supporting documents.	
3.	Valid Registration with Security & Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) or any other similar registration body of the lead consortium member/bidder.	
4.	Valid NTN and STRN certificates must be attached & firm must be on active taxpayer list of lead bidder.	
5.	Affidavit/undertaking by firm on Rupees One Hundred (Rs. 100/-) stamp paper that the, firm is: -  a. Not engaged in any winding up or insolvency litigation, b. Nor that the company / firm is blacklisted by any government or semi	
	government body. c. Challenged the government in the court of law	
6.	Bidder (in case of Consortium, each member) must submit a power of attorney, as required by the RFP Document, for authorized person nominated to sign the documents. In addition, Bidder (in case of Consortium only) must submit the copy of Consortium Agreement (duly attested) along with Bid or Proposal submitted to the Procuring Agency;	
7.	Audited financial statements of last 3 years (Lead Firm Only)	
8.	Project Management plan demonstrating the tasks and the timeline following which, the firm intends to complete the project	
9.	Lead Firm must have established office in Karachi.	
9.	i. General Experience:  Experience in compliance carbon markets (Article 6). Documented government Approvals. Need to be attached.	
10.	Lead firm/Bidder must have minimum annual financial turnover of at least PKR 50 million during last financial year and Rs. 50 million (on average) during the	

last three financial years, as verifiable from the financial statements or any other	
document	

In order to qualify for next step of evaluation firm must fulfill all above said requirement. (all yes otherwise Disqualify)

#### **Category & Evaluation:**

Quality and Cost Based Selection Method (QCBS) will be adopted for evaluating the Proposal. Technical Section is weighted at 80 and Financial is weighted at 20. In the first stage a technical evaluation will be carried out. Only those Technical Proposals, which score at least 60% marks in each category and sub category, shall be considered for further process i.e. financial proposal opening and evaluation.

S/No.	Category	Marks
A	Technical	
A1	Proven Experience	<u>30</u>
A1.1	The Bidder (or, in the case of a Consortium, at least one Consortium Member) must demonstrate experience securing project financing for large-scale solar developments, with a minimum value of USD 50,000,000.   ■ ≥ USD 50M: 10  ■ USD 40–49M: 7.5	10
A1.2	Experience in the development of at least two utility-scale projects (ideally solar PV), including executed PPAs with national utilities minimum 50 MW combined capacity in total. Must submit executed PPAs.  • \( \geq \text{USD 50M: 10} \) • \( \text{USD 40-49M: 7.5} \) • \( \text{USD 30-39M: 5} \)	10
A 1.3	Must have a minimum of one (1) years of hands-on experience working directly in international compliance carbon markets through Article 6 of the Paris Agreement and domestic compliance carbon markets. Must have documented experience obtaining government approval in Article 6 markets. (Letter of No Objection/Intent or Letter of Pre-Authorization/Contract)  ■ ≥ 3 projects: 10  ■ 2 projects: 7.5	10
A2	• 1 project: 5  Project Approach & Methodology	<u>40</u>
A2.1	Demonstrates understanding of project objectives, Article 6, Off-Grid/off-grid SHS deployment, and impact frameworks.  • Excellent, comprehensive: 20  • Good, covers major areas: 15	20
	• Average, partial coverage: 10 • Poor, superficial: 5	
A2.2	Methodology and Work Plan  Clarity, feasibility, and detail of methodology incl. MRV, stakeholder engagement, compliance.  • Excellent, detailed, realistic: 20	20

	• Good, moderate gaps: 15 • Average, generic: 10	
	• Weak/unclear: 5	
A3	Financial Strength & Execution Capability	<u>20</u>
A 3.1	Average annual turnover during last 3 years:	10
	• ≥ PKR 70M: <b>10</b>	
	• PKR 60–69M: <b>7.5</b> • PKR 50–59M: <b>5</b>	
A 3.2	Team Presentation & Q&A	10
	Live presentation on methodology & relevance to SHS project.	
	Excellent, comprehensive: 10  • Good: 7.5	
	• Average: 5	
	• Weak: <b>2.5</b>	
A4	Project Expert	<u>10</u>
A4.1	Climate Policy Expert/Technical Methodology Specialist	2.5
	Expertise in Pakistan's climate legislation, Article 6, and carbon credit methodologies (Min 5 years). Relevant Master's degree (e.g., Environmental Policy, Economics, Public Policy, Energy/Climate Studies).	
	• ≥ 5 years relevant exp: <b>2.5</b>	
	<ul><li>4–5 years: 1.5</li><li>&lt;3 years: 0.5</li></ul>	
A4.2	Carbon Markets Expertise	2.5
	Hands-on experience in international/domestic carbon markets under Article 6 (CV required).	
	<ul> <li>≥ 5 years: 2.5</li> <li>3-4 years: 1.5</li> <li>2 years: 1.0</li> </ul>	
A4.3	Environmental Specialist	2.5
	Master's degree in Environmental Sciences/Climate/Forestry with ≥ 10	
	years exp (≥ 2 years relevant).	
	• ≥ 5 years: <b>2.5</b>	
	<ul> <li>3–4 years: 1.5</li> <li>2 years: 1.0</li> </ul>	
A4.4	Solar Technology Specialist	2.5
	Knowledge of solar PV systems, carbon structuring, compliance, and value chain (min 5 years). Degree in Electrical/Mechanical/Energy/Environmental Eng.	
	I .	ı

• ≥ 5 years: <b>2.5</b>
<ul> <li>3–4 years: 1.5</li> <li>2 years: 1.0</li> </ul>
• 2 years: <b>1.0</b>

#### Additional Instructions and Evaluation Methodology

- Joint Ventures (JVs) are allowed.
- The evaluation will be conducted using the Quality and Cost Based Selection (QCBS) method. Proposals will be scored based on a combination of technical and financial criteria.
- Technical proposals must obtain a minimum of 80% marks out of 100 to be considered for financial evaluation. Only those bidders who meet this threshold will proceed to financial bid opening.
- The final score will be calculated using the following weightage:
  - Technical Proposal: 80%Financial Proposal: 20%
- 20.1 Expected date and address for contract negotiations: <u>4<sup>th</sup> December</u>, <u>2025</u> 3<sup>rd</sup> floor State Life Building # 3 Dr. Ziauddin Ahmed Road, Opp CM House Karachi.
- 24.2 Successful consultant is required to submit performance security in form of pay order, demand draft or bank guarantee amounting to 5% of the contract amount.
- 5.1 Consultant undertake to sign Integrity Pact for the procurement estimated to exceed Pak **Rs.2.5 million.**

#### Section 3: Technical Proposal Standard Forms.

#### FORM TECH-1. TECHNICAL PROPOSAL SUBMISSION FORM

[Location, Date]

To: [Name and address of PA]

Dear Sirs:

We, the undersigned, offer to provide the consulting services for [Insert title of assignment] in accordance with your Request for Proposal dated [Insert Date] and our Proposal. We are hereby submitting our Proposal, which includes this Technical Proposal, and a Financial Proposal sealed under a separate envelope1.

We are submitting our Proposal in association with: [Insert a list with full name and address of each associated Consultant] 2

We hereby declare that all the information and statements made in this Proposal are true and accept that any misinterpretation contained in it may lead to our disqualification.

If negotiations are held during the period of validity of the Proposal, i.e., before the date indicated in the Data Sheet, we undertake to negotiate on the basis of the proposed staff. Our Proposal is binding upon us and subject to the modifications resulting from Contract negotiations.

We undertake, if our Proposal is accepted, to initiate the consulting services related to the assignment not later than the date indicated in the Data Sheet.

We understand you are not bound to accept any Proposal you receive.

We remain,
Yours sincerely,
Authorized Signature [In full and initials]:
Name and Title of Signatory:
Name of Firm:
Address:

# For FTP Only

## FORM TECH-2. CONSULTANT'S ORGANIZATION AND EXPERIENCE

## A - Consultant's Organization

[Provide here a brief (two pages) description of the background and organization of your firm/entity and each associate for this assignment.]

## **B** - Consultant's Experience

[Using the format below, provide information on each assignment for which your firm, and each associate for this assignment, was legally contracted either individually or as a corporate entity or as one of the major companies within an association, for carrying out consulting services similar to the ones requested under this assignment. Use 20 pages.]

Assignment name:	Approx. value of the contract (in current US\$ or Euro):
Country:	Duration of assignment (months):
Location within country:	
Name of PA:	Total No of staff-months of the assignment:
Address:	Approx. value of the services provided by your firm under the contract (in current US\$ or Euro):
Start date (month/year): Completion date (month/year):	No of professional staff-months provided by associated Consultants:
Name of associated Consultants, if any:	Name of senior professional staff of your firm involved and functions performed (indicate most significant profiles such as Project Director/Coordinator, Team Leader):
Narrative description of Project:	

# For FTP Only

# FORM TECH-3. COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS ON THE TERMS OF REFERENCE AND ON COUNTER PART STAFF AND FACILITIES TO BE PROVIDED BY THE PA

#### A - On the Terms of Reference

[Present and justify here any modifications or improvement to the Terms of Reference you are proposing to improve performance in carrying out the assignment (such as deleting some activity you consider unnecessary, or adding another, or proposing a different phasing of the activities). Such suggestions should be concise and to the point, and incorporated in your Proposal.]

## **B** - On Counterpart Staff and Facilities

[Comment here on counterpart staff and facilities to be provided by the PA according to Paragraph Reference 1.4 of the Data Sheet including: administrative support, office space, local transportation, equipment, data, etc.]

# FORM TECH-4. DESCRIPTION OF APPROACH, METHODOLOGY AND WORK PLAN FOR PERFORMING THE ASSIGNMENT

(For small or very simple assignments the PA should omit the following text in Italic)

[Technical approach, methodology and work plan are key components of the Technical Proposal. You are suggested to present your Technical Proposal (20 pages, inclusive of charts and diagrams) divided into the following three chapters:

- a) Technical Approach and Methodology,
- b) Work Plan, and
- c) Organization and Staffing,
- a) Technical Approach and Methodology. In this chapter you should explain your understanding of the objectives of the assignment, approach to the services, methodology for carrying out the activities and obtaining the expected output, and the degree of detail of such output. You should highlight the problems being addressed and their importance, and explain the technical approach you would adopt to address them. You should also explain the methodologies you propose to adopt and highlight the compatibility of those methodologies with the proposed approach.
- b) Work Plan. In this chapter you should propose the main activities of the assignment, their content and duration, phasing and interrelations, milestones (including interim approvals by the PA), and delivery dates of the reports. The proposed work plan should be consistent with the technical approach and methodology, showing understanding of the TOR and ability to translate them into a feasible working plan. A list of the final documents, including reports, drawings, and tables to be delivered as final output, should be included here. The work plan should be consistent with the Work Schedule of Form TECH-8.
- c) Organization and Staffing. In this chapter you should propose the structure and composition of your team. You should list the main disciplines of the assignment, the key expert responsible, and proposed technical and support staff.]

## FORM TECH-5. TEAM COMPOSITION AND TASK ASSIGNMENTS

Professional Staff				
Name of Staff	Firm	Area of Expertise	Position Assigned	Task Assigned

# FORM TECH-6. CURRICULUM VITAE (CV) FOR PROPOSED PROFESSIONAL STAFF **1. Proposed Position** [only one candidate shall be nominated for each position]: 2. Name of Firm [Insert name of firm proposing the staff]: 3. Name of Staff [Insert full name]: 4. Date of Birth:\_\_\_\_\_\_Nationality: \_\_\_\_\_ **5. Education** [*Indicate college/university and other specialized education of staff member,* giving names of institutions, degrees obtained, and dates of obtainment]: 6. Membership of Professional Associations: \_\_\_\_\_ 7. Other Training [Indicate significant training since degrees under 5 - Education were *obtained*]: **8.** Countries of Work Experience: [List countries where staff has worked in the last ten years]: **9.** Languages [For each language indicate proficiency: good, fair, or poor in speaking, reading, and writing]: 10. Employment Record [Starting with present position, list in reverse order every employment held by staff member since graduation, giving for each employment (see format here below): dates of employment, name of employing organization, positions held.]: From [*Year*]:\_\_\_\_\_To [*Year*]: \_\_\_\_\_ Employer:

Positions held:

11. Detailed Tasks Assigned	12. Work Undertaken that Best Illustrates Capability to Handle the Tasks Assigned		
[List all tasks to be performed under this assignment]	[Among the assignments in which the staff has been involved, indicate the following information for those assignments that best illustrate staff capability to handle the tasks listed under point 11.]		
	Name of assignment or project:		
	Year:Location:		
	PA:		
	Main project features:		
	Positions held:		
	Activities performed:		
13. Certification:  (13. Certification: (14. The undersigned, certify that to the best of my knowledge and belief, this CV correctly describes me, my qualifications, and my experience. I understand that any wilful misstatement described merein may lead to my disqualification or dismissal, if engaged.			
	Date:		
Signature of staff member or aut	chorized representative of the staff] Day/Month/Year		
Full name of authorized represen	tative:		

#### FORM FIN-1. FINANCIAL PROPOSAL SUBMISSION FORM

[Location, Date]

To: [Name and address of PA]
Dear Sirs:

We, the undersigned, offer to provide the consulting services for [*Insert title of assignment*] in accordance with your Request for Proposal dated [*Insert Date*] and our Technical Proposal. Our attached Financial Proposal is for the sum of [*Insert amount(s) in words and figures*<sup>1</sup>].

Our Financial Proposal shall be binding upon us subject to the modifications resulting from Contract negotiations, up to expiration of the validity period of the Proposal, i.e. before the date indicated in Paragraph Reference 1.12 of the Data Sheet.

Commissions and gratuities paid or to be paid by us to agents relating to this Proposal and Contract execution, if we are awarded the Contract, are listed below<sup>2</sup>:

Name and Address of Agents	Amount and Currency	Purpose of Commission or
		Gratuity
We understand you are receive. We remain,	e not bound to accept any	Proposal you
Yours sincerely,		
Authorized Signature [In	ı full and initials]:	Name

- 1 Amounts must coincide with the ones indicated under Total Cost of Financial proposal in Form FIN-2.
- 2 If applicable, replace this paragraph with: "No commissions or gratuities have been or are to paid by us to agents relating to this Proposal and Contract execution."

# FORM FIN-2: SUMMARY OF COSTS

Sr. No	Item / Activity	Consultant's Proposed Share (%)							
1	Share of revenues from sale of verified and issued carbon credits	%							
In words: percent only.									
We confirm that this proposed share represents our full remuneration, inclusive of all applicable costs, overheads, and taxes. This financial proposal shall remain valid for <b>90 days</b> from the date of submission.									
	rized Signature: & Designation:								

# APPENDIX. FINANCIAL NEGOTIATIONS - BREAKDOWN OF REMUNERATION RATES

#### 1. Review of Remuneration Rates

- 1.1 The remuneration rates for staff are made up of salary, social costs, overheads, fee that is profit, and any premium or allowance paid for assignments away from headquarters. To assist the firm in preparing financial negotiations, a Sample Form giving a breakdown of rates is attached (no financial information should be included in the Technical Proposal). Agreed breakdown sheets shall form part of the negotiated contract.
- 1.2 The PA is charged with the custody of funds from Government of Sindh and is expected to exercise prudence in the expenditure of these funds. The PA is, therefore, concerned with the reasonableness of the firm's Financial Proposal, and, during negotiations, it expects to be able to review audited financial statements backing up the firm's remuneration rates, certified by an independent auditor. The firm shall be prepared to disclose such audited financial statements for the last three years, to substantiate its rates, and accept that its proposed rates and other financial matters are subject to scrutiny. Rate details are discussed below.

#### (i) Salary

This is the gross regular cash salary paid to the individual in the firm's home office. It shall not contain any premium for work away from headquarters or bonus.

#### (ii) Social Costs

Social costs are the costs to the firm of staff's non-monetary benefits. These items include, inter alia, social security including pension, medical and life insurance costs, and the cost of a staff member being sick or on vacation. In this regard, the cost of leave for public holidays is not an acceptable social cost nor is the cost of leave taken during an assignment if no additional staff replacement has been provided. Additional leave taken at the end of an assignment in accordance with the firm's leave policy is acceptable as a social cost.

#### (iii) Cost of Leave

The principles of calculating the cost of total days leave per annum as a percentage of basic salary shall normally be as follows:

Leave cost as percentage of salary 1 = total days leave x 100

1 Where w = weekends, ph = public holidays, v = vacation, and s = sick leave.

It is important to note that leave can be considered a social cost only if the PA is not charged for the leave taken.

#### (iv) Overheads

Overhead expenses are the firm's business costs that are not directly related to the execution

of the assignment and shall not be reimbursed as separate items under the contract. Typical items are home office costs (partner's time, nonbillable time, time of senior staff monitoring the project, rent, support staff, research, staff training, marketing, etc.), the cost of staff not currently employed on revenue-earning projects, taxes on business activities and business promotion costs. During negotiations, audited financial statements, certified as correct by an independent auditor and supporting the last three years' overheads, shall be available for discussion, together with detailed lists of items making up the overheads and the percentage by which each relates to basic salary. The PA does not accept an add-on margin for social charges, overhead expenses, etc., for staff who are not permanent employees of the firm. In such case, the firm shall be entitled only to administrative costs and fee on the monthly payments charged for subcontracted staff.

#### (v) Fee or Profit

The fee or profit shall be based on the sum of the salary, social costs, and overhead. If any bonuses paid on a regular basis are listed, a corresponding reduction in the profit element shall be expected. Fee or profit shall not be allowed on travel or other reimbursable expenses, unless in the latter case an unusually large amount of procurement of equipment is required. The firm shall note that payments shall be made against an agreed estimated payment schedule as described in the draft form of the contract.

#### (vi) Away from Headquarters Allowance or Premium

Some Consultants pay allowances to staff working away from headquarters. Such allowances are calculated as a percentage of salary and shall not draw overheads or profit.

#### (vii) Subsistence Allowances

Subsistence allowances are not included in the rates, but are paid separately and in local currency. No additional subsistence is payable for dependents  $\Box$  the subsistence rate shall be the same for married and single team members.

Standard rates for the particular country may be used as reference to determine subsistence allowances.

#### 2. Reimbursable expenses

2.1 The financial negotiations shall further focus on such items as out-of-pocket expenses and other reimbursable expenses. These costs may include, but are not restricted to, cost of surveys, equipment, office rent, supplies, international and local travel, computer rental, mobilization and demobilization, insurance, and printing. These costs may be either unit rates or reimbursable on the presentation of invoices, in foreign or local currency.

#### 3. PA Guarantee

3.1 Payments to the firm, including payment of any advance based on cash flow projections covered by a PA guarantee, shall be made according to an agreed estimated schedule ensuring the consultant regular payments in local and foreign currency, as long as the services proceed as planned.

# Sample Form

Consulting Firm:	Country:						
Assignment:	Date:						
Consultant's Representations Regarding	Costs and Charges						
We hereby confirm that:							
the basic salaries indicated in the attached table are taken from the firm's payroll record and reflect the current salaries of the staff members listed which have not been raised other than within the normal annual salary increase policy as applied to all the firm's staff;							
(b) attached are true copies of the latest salary slips of t	attached are true copies of the latest salary slips of the staff members listed;						
(c) the away from headquarters allowances indicated belagreed to pay for this assignment to the staff members listed	•						
(d) the factors listed in the attached table for social charges and overhead are based on the firm's average cost experiences for the latest three years as represented by the firm's financial statements; and							
(e) said factors for overhead and social charges do not i profit-sharing.	said factors for overhead and social charges do not include any bonuses or other means of t-sharing.						
[Name of Consulting Firm]							
Signature of Authorized Representative	Date						
Name:							
TO A							

# **Consultant's Representations Regarding Costs and Charges**

# (Expressed in [insert name of currency])

Per son nel		1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8
Name	Positio n	Basic Salary per Working Month/Da y/Year	Soci al Char ges <sup>1</sup>	Overh ead <sup>1</sup>	Subt	Fe e <sup>2</sup>	Away from Headqu arters Allowa nce	Proposed Fixed Rate per Working Month/Da y/Hour	Proposed Fixed Rate per Working Month/Day /Hour <sup>1</sup>
Home Office									
Field									

#### **SECTION 4:** TERMS OF REFERENCE

#### **Project Background:**

The Energy Department, Government of Sindh, is implementing a flagship initiative under the Annual Development Programme (ADP No. 2876, Scheme UID ENDEN-PP-24-0002) titled: Solar Home System for Poor Families (Off-Grid) in Sindh under Special Initiative"

This scheme aims to provide access to clean and affordable energy for 130000 low-income households residing in Off-Grid areas of Sindh. The targeted beneficiaries are Protected Consumers in the category from 0 - 100 units/month and have not received similar support under any government program.

Each Solar Home System (SHS) Kit includes:

- One (1) DC Fan;
- Three (3) LED lights;
- A mobile charging port;
- Solar Panel 180 Wp;
- 30 Ah battery, charge controller, wiring etc.

These portable, VeraSol-certified kits will be distributed free of cost to eligible families through a transparent, technology-enabled mechanism that ensures equity and sustainability. The distribution and installation will be carried out with the support of accredited Solar Installation Firms (SIFs), NGOs, or Joint Ventures (JVs), selected through competitive bidding.

This initiative not only enhances energy access but also contributes to reducing dependence on fossil fuels, thereby cutting greenhouse gas emissions. In line with global sustainability goals and Pakistan's climate commitments, the Government of Sindh intends to leverage carbon finance mechanisms to enhance the long term viability of this initiative.

#### Purpose of this RFP

The Government of Sindh seeks to engage the services of a qualified and experienced Carbon Credits Consultancy Firm to integrate the SHS program into internationally recognized carbon finance frameworks.

The objective is to:

- Prepare and register the project under leading carbon standards (e.g., Verra/VCS, Gold Standard, Article 6-compliant mechanisms).
- Establish robust MRV (Monitoring, Reporting, and Verification) frameworks.
- Secure project registration and verification of emission reductions.
- Monetize carbon credits through international markets, maximizing returns for the Government of Sindh.

#### **Project Structure**

The consultancy assignment shall be undertaken as a **single integrated project** covering the full cycle:

#### 1. Registration-Ready Stage (Fixed Cost)

- o Prefeasibility and eligibility assessments.
- Baseline studies and methodology selection.
- Pricing benchmarks and revenue modeling.
- o Preparation of Project Design Documents (PDD/MADD).
- Coordination with validation/verification bodies.
- o Final submission to international carbon standard (e.g., Verra/Gold Standard).

#### 2. Monetization Stage (Revenue Sharing)

- o Conduct verification and coordinate issuance of verified carbon credits.
- o Develop sales strategy, market outreach, and buyer engagement.
- Execute transactions with buyers through direct sales, auctions, or platforms.
- o Provide transaction support including negotiation, due diligence, and contracting.
- o Deliver training and capacity building for PMU staff on carbon credit monetization.

#### **Financial Model:**

- o No further public expenditure.
- o The consultant shall be entitled to an agreed percentage share of revenues from credit sales.
- The Government of Sindh's share of revenues will be determined through the bidder's financial proposal, with preference given to higher revenue retention percentages for the Government.

#### **Proposal Submission and Evaluation**

- **Technical Evaluation**: Proposals will first be evaluated on technical grounds (methodology, experience, team expertise, and approach). A minimum technical score of **80%** will be required to qualify.
- **Financial Evaluation**: Among technically qualified bidders, the contract will be awarded based on the **percentage share of carbon credit revenues offered to the Government of Sindh**. Bidders offering higher revenue shares to the Government will be given preference.
- Award Structure: Both the fixed consultancy (PKR 50M) and the revenue-sharing monetization assignment will be awarded together to a single successful bidder under this RFP.

#### 5. DELIVERABLES

Key Deliverables and Timelines of Registration-Ready Stage

Deliverable	Timeline	Output	Payment Schedule
Submission of Inception Report	Week 1 - 2	Report showing initial plan, detailing the consultant's understanding of the Terms of Reference (TOR), the proposed methodology for the study, the team structure, key indicators, a detailed work plan with timelines, and risk assessment	10%
Eligibility Assessment and Framework Selection	Week 2 - 4	Eligibility report with recommended methodology	30%
Pricing Benchmark and Market Landscape	Week 4 to 6	Pricing benchmark report and buyer analysis	20%
Revenue Modeling and Optimization	Week 6 to 7	Revenue model with scenario analysis	20%
Reinvestment & Revenue Sharing Framework	Week 7 to 10	Strategic reinvestment and stakeholder model	10%
Go/No-Go Assessment Report	Week 10 to 12	Decision matrix and prefeasibility recommendation	10%

Monetization Stage (Revenue Sharing)

Deliverable	Timeline	Output
Baseline Assessments and Data Collection	Week 1 – 8	Report on potential buyers, marketplaces, and pricing benchmarks for SHS carbon credits
Revenue Model & Sales Strategy	Week 8 – 12	Strategy document with recommended sales channels, pricing approach, and contract structures

Project Design Document Preparation	Week 12 – 20	Draft all the necessary documentation to make the project eligible for Verra/ Gold Standard, along with collection and compiling of all on ground data sets.
Validation	Week 20 – 28	Work with 3rd party validators to ensure compliance of PDD and prepare for submission to Standard body
Submission to Verra/ Gold Standard	Week 28 – 30	Submit all prepared documents to the verified standard body.
Verification, Issuance of Credits, and Sales	Subject to Approval - Verra/Gold Standard	

# Section 5: Standard forms of Contract General Conditions of Contract

#### 1. GENERAL PROVISIONS

### 1.1 Definitions

Unless the context otherwise requires, the following terms whenever used in this Contract have the following meanings:

- (a) "Applicable Law" means the Sindh Public Procurement Act, thereunder Rules 2010.
- (b) "Procuring Agency PA" means the implementing department which signs the contract
- (c) "Consultant" means a professional who can study, design, organize, evaluate and manage projects or assess, evaluate and provide specialist advice or give technical assistance for making or drafting policies, institutional reforms and includes private entities, consulting firms, legal advisors, engineering firms, construction managers, management firms, procurement agents, inspection agents, auditors, international and multinational organizations, investment and merchant banks, universities, research institutions, government agencies, nongovernmental organizations, and individuals.
- (d) "Contract" means the Contract signed by the Parties and all the attached documents listed in its Clause 1, that is General Conditions (GC), the Special Conditions (SC), and the Appendices.
- (e) "Contract Price" means the price to be paid for the performance of the Services, in accordance with Clause 6;
- (f) "Effective Date" means the date on which this Contract comes into force and effect pursuant to Clause GC 2.1.
- (g) "Foreign Currency" means any currency other than the currency of the PA's country.
- (h) "GC" means these General Conditions of Contract.
- (i) "Government" means the Government of Sindh.
- (j) "Local Currency" means Pak Rupees.
- (k) "Member" means any of the entities that make up the joint venture/consortium/association, and "Members" means all these entities.
- (l) "Party" means the PA or the Consultant, as the case may be, and "Parties" means both of them.
- (m) "Personnel" means persons hired by the Consultant or by any Sub- Consultants and assigned to the performance of the Services or any part thereof.
- (n) "SC" means the Special Conditions of Contract by which the GC may be amended or

supplemented.

- (o) "Services" means the consulting services to be performed by the Consultant pursuant to this Contract, as described in the Terms of References.
- (p) "Sub-Consultants" means any person or entity to whom/which the Consultant subcontracts any part of the Services.
- (q) "In writing" means communicated in written form with proof of receipt.

### **1.2 Law Governing Contract**

This Contract, its meaning and interpretation, and the relation between the Parties shall be governed by the applicable law.

### 1.3 Language

This Contract is executed in the language specified in the SC, which shall be the binding and controlling language for all matters relating to the meaning or interpretation of this Contract.

#### 1.4 Notices

- 1.4.1 Any notice, request or consent required or permitted to be given or made pursuant to this Contract shall be in writing. Any such notice, request or consent shall be deemed to have been given or made when delivered in person to an authorized representative of the Party to whom the communication is addressed, or when sent to such Party at the address specified in the SC.
- 1.4.2 A Party may change its address for notice hereunder by giving the other Party notice in writing of such change to the address specified in the SC.

#### 1.5 Location

The Services shall be performed at such locations as are specified in special condition of contract and, where the location of a particular task is not so specified, at such locations, whether in the Government's country or elsewhere, as the PA may approve.

### 1.6 Authority of Member in Charge

In case the Consultant consists of a joint venture/ consortium/ association of more than one individual firms, the Members hereby authorize the individual firms or specified in the SC to act on their behalf in exercising all the Consultant's rights and obligations towards the PA under this Contract, including without limitation the receiving of instructions and payments from the PA.

### 1.7 Authorized Representatives

Any action required or permitted to be taken, and any document required or permitted to be executed under this Contract by the PA or the Consultant may be taken or executed by the officials specified in the SC.

#### 1.8 Taxes and Duties

The Consultant, Sub-Consultants, and their Personnel shall pay such direct or indirect taxes, duties,

fees, and other impositions levied under the Applicable Law as specified in the SC, the amount of which is deemed to have been included in the Contract Price.

### 1.9 Fraud and Corruption

A. If the PA determines that the Consultant and/or its Personnel, sub-contractors, sub-consultants, services providers and suppliers has engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive, or obstructive practices, in competing for or in executing the Contract, then the PA may, after giving 14 days notice to the Consultant, terminate the Consultant's employment under the Contract, and may resort to other remedies including blacklisting/disqualification as provided in SPPR 2010.

Any personnel of the Consultant who engages in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive, or obstructive practice during the execution of the Contract, shall be removed in accordance with Sub-Clause 4.2.

### **Integrity Pact**

- B. If the Consultant or any of his Sub-consultants, agents or servants is found to have violated or involved in violation of the Integrity Pact signed by the Consultant as "Appendix: Integrity Pact" to this Form of Contract, then the Client shall be entitled to:
  - (a) recover from the Consultant an amount equivalent to ten times the sum of any commission, gratification, bribe, finder's fee or kickback given by the Consultant or any of his Sub-consultant, agents or servants;
  - (b) terminate the Contract; and
  - (c) recover from the Consultant any loss or damage to the Client as a result of such termination or of any other corrupt business practices of the Consultant or any of his Subconsultant, agents or servants.

On termination of the Contract under Sub-Para (b) of this Sub- Clause, the Consultant shall proceed in accordance with Sub- Clause 1.9 A. Payment upon such termination shall be made under Sub-Clause 1.9 A after having deducted the amounts due to the Client under 19 B Sub-Para (a) and (c).

# 2. COMMENCEMENT, COMPLETION, MODIFICATION AND TERMINATION OF CONTRACT

#### 2.1 Effectiveness of Contract

This Contract shall come into effect on the date the Contract is signed by both Parties or such other later date as may be stated in the SC. The date the Contract comes into effect is defined as the Effective Date.

### 2.2 Commencement of Services

The Consultant shall begin carrying out the Services not later than the number of days after the Effective Date specified in the SC.

### 2.3 Expiration of Contract

Unless terminated earlier pursuant to Clause GC 2.6 hereof, this Contract shall expire at the end of such time period after the Effective Date as specified in the SC.

#### 2.4 Modifications or Variations

Any modification or variation of the terms and conditions of this Contract, including any modification or variation of the scope of the Services, may only be made by written agreement between the Parties. However, each Party shall give due consideration to any proposals for modification or variation made by the other Party.

### 2.5 Force Majeure

The failure on the part of the parties to perform their obligation under the contract will not be considered a default if such failure is the result of natural calamities, disasters and circumstances beyond the control of the parties.

### 2.5.2 No Breach of Contract

The failure of a Party to fulfill any of its obligations under the contract shall not be considered to be a breach of, or default under, this Contract insofar as such inability arises from an event of Force Majeure, provided that the Party affected by such an event (a) has taken all reasonable precautions, due care and reasonable alternative measures in order to carry out the terms and conditions of this Contract, and (b) has informed the other Party as soon as possible about the occurrence of such an event.

#### 2.5.3 Extension of Time

Any period within which a Party shall, pursuant to this Contract, complete any action or task, shall be extended for a period equal to the time during which such Party was unable to perform such action as a result of Force Majeure.

#### 2.5.4 Payments

During the period of their inability to perform the Services as a result of an event of Force Majeure, the Consultant shall be entitled to continue to be paid under the terms of this Contract, as well as to be reimbursed for additional costs reasonably and necessarily incurred by them during such period for the purposes of the Services and in reactivating the Service after the end of such period.

#### 2.6 Termination

### 2.6.1 By the PA

The PA may terminate this Contract in case of the occurrence of any of the events specified in paragraphs (a) through (f) of this Clause GC

- 2.6.1. In such an occurrence the PA shall give a not less than thirty (30) days' written notice of termination to the Consultant, and sixty (60) days' in the case of the event referred to in (e).
  - (a) If the Consultant does not remedy the failure in the performance of their obligations under the Contract, within thirty (30) days after being notified or within any further period as the PA may have subsequently approved in writing.

- (b) If the Consultant becomes insolvent or bankrupt.
- (c) If the Consultant, in the judgment of the PA has engaged in corrupt or fraudulent practices in competing for or in executing the Contract.
- (d) If, as the result of Force Majeure, the Consultant(s) are unable to perform a material portion of the Services for a period of not less than sixty (60) days.
- (e) If the PA, in its sole discretion and for any reason whatsoever, decides to terminate this Contract.
- (f) If the Consultant fails to comply with any final decision reached as a result of arbitration proceedings pursuant to Clause GC 8 hereof.

### 2.6.2 By the Consultant

The Consultants may terminate this Contract, by not less than thirty (30) days' written notice to the PA, such notice to be given after the occurrence of any of the events specified in paragraphs (a) through (c) of this Clause GC 2.6.2:

- (a) If the PA fails to pay any money due to the Consultant pursuant to this Contract without consultants fault.
- (b) Pursuant to Clause GC 7 hereof within forty-five (45) days after receiving written notice from the Consultant that such payment is overdue.
- (c) If, as the result of Force Majeure, the Consultant is unable to perform a material portion of the Services for a period of not less than sixty (60) days.
- (d) If the PA fails to comply with any final decision reached as a result of arbitration pursuant to Clause GC 8 hereof.

### 2.6.3 Payment upon Termination

Upon termination of this Contract pursuant to Clauses GC 2.6.1 or GC 2.6.2, the PA shall make the following payments to the Consultant:

- (a) payment pursuant to Clause GC 6 for Services satisfactorily performed prior to the effective date of termination;
- (b) except in the case of termination pursuant to paragraphs (a) through (c), and (f) of Clause GC 2.6.1, reimbursement of any reasonable cost incident to the prompt and orderly termination of the Contract, including the cost of the return travel of the Personnel and their eligible dependents.

#### 3. OBLIGATIONS OF THE CONSULTANT

#### 3.1 General

#### 3.1.1 Standard of Performance

The Consultant shall perform the Services and carry out their obligations hereunder with all due

diligence, efficiency and economy, in accordance with generally accepted professional standards and practices, and shall observe sound management practices, and employ appropriate technology and safe and effective equipment, machinery, materials and methods. The Consultant shall always act, in respect of any matter relating to this Contract or to the Services, as faithful advisers to the PA, and shall at all times support and safeguard the PA's legitimate interests in any dealings with Sub-Consultants or third Parties.

#### 3.2 Conflict of Interests

The Consultant shall hold the PA's interests paramount, without any consideration for future work, and strictly avoid conflict with other assignments or their own corporate interests.

### 3.2.1 Consultants not to Benefit from Commissions, Discounts, etc.

The payment of the Consultant pursuant to Clause GC 6 shall constitute the Consultant's only payment in connection with this Contract or the Services, and the Consultant shall not accept for their own benefit any trade commission, discount, or similar payment in connection with activities pursuant to this Contract or to the Services or in the discharge of their obligations under the Contract, and the Consultant shall use their best efforts to ensure that the Personnel, any Sub-Consultants, and agents of either of them similarly shall not receive any such additional payment.

### 3.2.2 Consultant and Affiliates not to be Otherwise Interested in Project

The Consultant agrees that, during the term of this Contract and after its termination, the Consultant and any entity affiliated with the Consultant, as well as any Sub-Consultants and any entity affiliated with such Sub- Consultants, shall be disqualified from providing goods, works or services (other than consulting services) resulting from or directly related to the Consultant's Services for the preparation or implementation of the project.

### 3.2.3 Prohibition of Conflicting Activities

The Consultant shall not engage, and shall cause their Personnel as well as their Sub-Consultants and their Personnel not to engage, either directly or indirectly, in any business or professional activities which would conflict with the activities assigned to them under this Contract.

### 3.3 Confidentiality

Except with the prior written consent of the PA, the Consultant and the Personnel shall not at any time communicate to any person or entity any confidential information acquired in the course of the Services, nor shall the Consultant and the Personnel make public the recommendations formulated in the course of, or as a result of, the Services.

### 3.4 Insurance to be Taken Out by the Consultant

The Consultant (a) shall take out and maintain, and shall cause any Sub- Consultants to take out and maintain, at their (or the Sub-Consultants', as the case may be) own cost but on terms and conditions approved by the PA, insurance against the risks, and for the coverage, as shall be specified in the SC; and (b) at the PA's request, shall provide evidence to the PA showing that such insurance has been taken out and maintained and that the current premiums have been paid.

### 3.5 Consultant's Actions Requiring PA's Prior Approval

The Consultant shall obtain the PA's prior approval in writing before taking any of the following actions:

- (a) entering into a subcontract for the performance of any part of the Services,
- (b) appointing such members of the Personnel not listed by name in Appendix C, and
- (c) any other action that may be specified in the SC.

### 3.6 Reporting Obligations

- (a) The Consultant shall submit to the PA the reports and documents specified in (PA may insert appendix) hereto, in the form, in the numbers and within the time periods set forth in the said Appendix.
- (b) Final reports shall be delivered in CD ROM in addition to the hard copies specified in said Appendix.

### 3.7 Documents Prepared by the Consultant to be the Property of the PA

- (a) All plans, drawings, specifications, designs, reports, other documents and software submitted by the Consultant under this Contract shall become and remain the property of the PA, and the Consultant shall, not later than upon termination or expiration of this Contract, deliver all such documents to the PA, together with a detailed inventory thereof.
- (b) The Consultant may retain a copy of such documents and software. Restrictions about the future use of these documents, if any, shall be specified in the SC.

### 3.8 Accounting, Inspection and Auditing

- 3.8.1 The Consultant shall keep, and shall cause its Sub-consultants to keep, accurate and systematic accounts and records in respect of the Contract, in accordance with internationally accepted accounting principles and in such form and detail as will clearly identify relevant time changes and costs.
- 3.8.2 The Consultant shall permit, and shall cause its Sub-consultants to permit, the PA and/or persons appointed by the PA to inspect its accounts and records relating to the performance of the Contract and the submission of the Proposal to provide the Services, and to have such accounts and records audited by auditors appointed by the PA if requested by the PA. The Consultant's attention is drawn to Clause 1.9.1 which provides, inter alia, that acts intended to materially impede the exercise of the PA's inspection and audit rights provided for under Clause 3.8 constitute a prohibited practice subject to contract termination (as well as to a determination of ineligibility pursuant to the PA's prevailing sanctions procedures.).

### 4. CONSULTANT'S PERSONNEL

### 4.1 Description of Personnel

The Consultant shall employ and provide such qualified and experienced Personnel and Sub-

Consultants as are required to carry out the Services. The titles, agreed job descriptions, minimum qualifications, and estimated periods of engagement in the carrying out of the Services of the Consultant's Key Personnel are described in Appendix C. The Key Personnel and Sub-Consultants listed by title as well as by name in Appendix C are hereby approved by the PA.

### 4.2 Removal and/or Replacement of Personnel

- (a) Except as the PA may otherwise agree, no changes shall be made in the Key Personnel. If, for any reason beyond the reasonable control of the Consultant, such as retirement, death, medical incapacity, among others, it becomes necessary to replace any of the Key Personnel, the Consultant shall provide as a replacement a person of equivalent or better qualifications.
- (b) If the PA finds that any of the Personnel have (i) committed serious misconduct or have been charged with having committed a criminal action, or (ii) have reasonable cause to be dissatisfied with the performance of any of the Personnel, then the Consultant shall, at the PA's written request specifying the grounds thereof, provide as a replacement a person with qualifications and experience acceptable to the PA.
- (c) The Consultant shall have no claim for additional costs arising out of or incidental to any removal and/or replacement of Personnel.

### 5. OBLIGATIONS OF THE PA

### 5.1 Assistance and Exemptions

The PA shall use its best efforts to ensure that the Government shall provide the Consultant such assistance and exemptions as specified in the SC.

### 5.2 Change in the Applicable Law Related to Taxes and Duties

If, after the date of this Contract, there is any change in the Applicable Law with respect to taxes and duties which increases or decreases the cost incurred by the Consultant in performing the Services, then the remuneration and reimbursable expenses otherwise payable to the Consultant under this Contract shall be increased or decreased accordingly by agreement between the Parties, and corresponding adjustments shall be made to the amounts referred to in Clauses GC 6.2 (a) or (b), as the case may be.

#### **5.3** Services and Facilities

The PA shall make available free of charge to the Consultant the Services and Facilities listed under Appendix F.

### 6. PAYMENTS TO THE CONSULTANT

### 6.1 Security

The consultant has to submit bid security and the performance security at the rate mention in SC.

### 6.2 Lump-Sum Payment

The consultant has to submit bid security and the performance security at the rate mention in SC.

The total payment due to the Consultant shall not exceed the Contract Price which is an all inclusive fixed lump-sum covering all costs required to carry out the Services described in Appendix A. Except as provided in Clause 5.2, the Contract Price may only be increased above the amounts stated in Clause 6.2 if the Parties have agreed to additional payments in accordance with Clause 2.4.

### **6.3** Contract Price

The price payable in Pak Rupees/foreign currency/ is set forth in the SC.

6.4 Payment for Additional Services For the purpose of determining the remuneration due for additional services as may be agreed under Clause 2.4, a breakdown of the lump- sum price is provided in Appendices D and E.

### 6.5 Terms and Conditions of Payment

Payments will be made to the account of the Consultant and according to the payment schedule stated in the SC. Unless otherwise stated in the SC, the first payment shall be made against the provision by the Consultant of an advance payment guarantee for the same amount, and shall be valid for the period stated in the SC. Such guarantee shall be in the form set forth in Appendix G hereto, or in such other form, as the PA shall have approved in writing. Any other payment shall be made after the conditions listed in the SC for such payment have been met, and the Consultant has submitted an invoice to the PA specifying the amount due.

### 7. GOOD FAITH

### 7.1 Good Faith

The Parties undertake to act in good faith with respect to each other's rights under this Contract and to adopt all reasonable measures to ensure the realization of the objectives of this Contract.

### 8. SETTLEMENT OF DISPUTES

### 8.1 Amicable Settlement

The Parties agree that the avoidance or early resolution of disputes is crucial for a smooth execution of the Contract and the success of the assignment. The Parties shall use their best efforts to settle amicably all disputes arising out of or in connection with this Contract or its interpretation.

### 8.2 Dispute Resolution

Any dispute between the Parties as to matters arising pursuant to this Contract that cannot be settled amicably within thirty (30) days after receipt by one Party of the other Party's request for such amicable settlement may be submitted by either Party for settlement in accordance with the provisions specified in the SC.

## **Special Conditions of Contract**

(Clauses in brackets { } are optional; all notes should be deleted in final text)

Number of GC Clause	Amendments of, and Supplements to, Clauses in the General Conditions of Contract		
{1.1}	Sindh Public Procurement Act and Sindh Public Procurement Rules 2010.		
1.3	The language is English.		
1.4	The addresses are:		
	Procuring Agency: Energy, Energy Dept., Government of Sindh Attention: Mr. Faisal Hussain Facsimile: E-mail:		
	Consultant:		
	Attention: Facsimile:		
	E-mail:		
<b>{1.6}</b>	{The Member in Charge is [insert name of member]}		
	<b>Note</b> : If the Consultant consists of a joint venture/consortium/association of more than one entity, the name of the entity whose address is specified in Clause SC 1.6 should be inserted here. If the Consultant consists only of one entity, this Clause SC 1.8 should be deleted from the SC.		
1.7	The Authorized Representatives are:		
	For the PA: Mr. Faisal Hussain For the Consultant:		

1.8 PA shall specify all relevant taxes including stamp duty and service charges to be borne by the consultant. In case there is exemption from any rates, taxes, the same shall be mentioned here.

The Consultant must be informed in Clause Reference 3.7 of the Data Sheet about which alternative the PA wishes to apply.

The PA warrants that the Consultant, the Sub-Consultants and the Personnel shall be exempt from (or that the PA shall pay on behalf of the Consultant, the Sub- Consultants and the Personnel, or shall reimburse the Consultant, the Sub- Consultants and the Personnel for) any indirect taxes, duties, fees, levies and other impositions imposed, under the Applicable Law, on the Consultant, the Sub- Consultants and the Personnel in respect of:

- (a) any payments whatsoever made to the Consultant, Sub-Consultants and the Personnel (other than nationals or permanent residents of Pakistan), in connection with the carrying out of the Services;
- (b) any equipment, materials and supplies brought into the Government's country by the Consultant or Sub-Consultants for the purpose of carrying out the Services and which, after having been brought into such territories, will be subsequently withdrawn there from by them;
- (c) any equipment imported for the purpose of carrying out the Services and paid for out of funds provided by the PA and which is treated as property of the PA;
- (d) any property brought into the province by the international Consultant, any Sub-Consultants or the Personnel or the eligible dependents of such Personnel for their personal use and which will subsequently be withdrawn there from by them upon their respective departure from the Government's country, provided that:

- (1) the Consultant, Sub-Consultants and Personnel, and their eligible dependents, shall follow the usual customs procedures of the Government's country in importing property into the Government's country; and
- (2) if the Consultant, Sub-Consultants or Personnel, or their eligible dependents, do not withdraw but dispose of any property in the Pakistan for which customs duties and taxes have been exempted, the Consultant, Sub-Consultants or Personnel, as the case may be, (i) shall bear such customs duties and taxes in conformity with the regulations of the Government's country, or
  - (ii) shall reimburse them to the PA if they were paid by the PA at the time the property in question was brought into the Government's country.
- 2.2 The date for the commencement of Services is 1<sup>st</sup> January, 2021.
- 2.3 The time period shall be **three months** [insert time period, e.g.: twelve months, eighteen months].
- 3.4 The risks and the coverage shall be as follows: (N/A)
  - (a) Third Party motor vehicle liability insurance in respect of motor vehicles operated by the Consultant or its Personnel or any Sub- Consultants or their Personnel, with a minimum coverage of [insert amount and currency];
  - (b) Third Party liability insurance, with a minimum coverage of [insert amount and currency];
  - (c) professional liability insurance, with a minimum coverage of [insert amount and currency];
  - (d) employer's liability and workers' compensation insurance in respect of the Personnel of the Consultant and of any Sub-Consultants, in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Applicable Law, as well as, with respect to such Personnel, any such life, health, accident, travel or other insurance as may be appropriate; and
  - (e) insurance against loss of or damage to (i) equipment purchased in whole or in part with funds provided under this Contract, (ii) the Consultant's

property used in the performance of the Services, and (iii) any documents prepared by the Consultant in the performance of the

Services.

Note: Delete what is not applicable

{3.5 (c)} {The other actions are: [insert actions].}

*Note:* If there are no other actions, delete this Clause SC 3.5 (c).

**Note**: If there is to be no restriction on the future use of these documents by either Party, this Clause SC 3.7 should be deleted. If the Parties wish to restrict such use, any of the following options, or any other option agreed to by the Parties, may be used:

{The Consultant shall not use these documents and software for purposes unrelated to this Contract without the prior written approval of the PA.}

{The PA shall not use these documents and software for purposes unrelated to this Contract without the prior written approval of the Consultant.}

{Neither Party shall use these documents and software for purposes unrelated to this Contract without the prior written approval of the other Party.}

- **Note**: List here any assistance or exemptions that the PA may provide under Clause 5.1. If there is no such assistance or exemptions, state "not applicable."
- Procuring Agency shall indicate bid security not less than 1% and above 5% Performance security shall not exceed 10% of contract amount
- The amount in Pak Rupees or in foreign Currency [PKR].

### **6.5** The accounts are:

for foreign currency or currencies: [insert account]

for local currency: [insert account]

Payments shall be made according to the following schedule:

- (a) Ten (10) percent of the lump-sum amount shall be paid upon submission of the inception report.
- (b) Twenty-five (25) percent of the lump-sum amount shall be paid upon submission of the interim report.
- (c) Twenty-five (25) percent of the lump-sum amount shall be paid upon submission of the draft final report.
- (d) Forty (40) percent of the lump-sum amount shall be paid upon approval of the final report.

*Note*: This sample clause should be specifically drafted for each contract.

Disputes shall be settled by complaint redressal committee define in SPPR 2010 or through arbitration Act of 1940.in accordance with the following provisions:

### **Appendix: (INTEGRITY PACT)**

## DECLARATION OF FEES, COMMISSION AND BROKERAGE ETC. PAYABLE BY THE SUPPLIERS OF GOODS, SERVICES & WORKS IN CONTRACTS WORTH RS. 2.5 MILLION OR MORE

Contract No	Dated	Contract Value:
Contract Title:		
	[name of Sup	plier] hereby declares that it has
not obtained or induce	d the procurement of any	contract, right, interest, privilege
or other obligation	or benefit from Govern	nment of Sindh (GoS) or any
administrative subdiv	ision or agency thereof	or any other entity owned or
controlled by GoS thro	ough any corrupt busines	s practice.

Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, [name of Supplier] represents and warrants that it has fully declared the brokerage, commission, fees etc. paid or payable to anyone and not given or agreed to give and shall not give or agree to give to anyone within or outside Pakistan either directly or indirectly through any natural or juridical person, including its affiliate, agent, associate, broker, consultant, director, promoter, shareholder, sponsor or subsidiary, any commission, gratification, bribe, finder's fee or kickback, whether described as consultation fee or otherwise, with the object of obtaining or inducing the procurement of a contract, right, interest, privilege or other obligation or benefit in whatsoever form from GoS, except that which has been expressly declared pursuant hereto.

[name of Supplier] certifies that it has made and will make full disclosure of all agreements and arrangements with all persons in respect of or related to the transaction with GoS and has not taken any action or will not take any action to circumvent the above declaration, representation or warranty.

[name of Supplier] accepts full responsibility and strict liability for making any false declaration, not making full disclosure, misrepresenting facts or taking any

action likely to defeat the purpose of this declaration, representation and warranty. It agrees that any contract, right, interest, privilege or other obligation or benefit obtained or procured as aforesaid shall, without prejudice to any other rights and remedies available to GoS under any law, contract or other instrument, be voidable at the option of GoS.

Notwithstanding any rights and remedies exercised by GoS in this regard, [name of Supplier] agrees to indemnify GoS for any loss or damage incurred by it on account of its corrupt business practices and further pay compensation to GoS in an amount equivalent to ten time the sum of any commission, gratification, bribe, finder's fee or kickback given by [name of Supplier] as aforesaid for the purpose of obtaining or inducing the procurement of any contract, right, interest, privilege or other obligation or benefit in whatsoever form from GoS.

Name of Buyer:	Name of Seller/Supplier:
Signature:	Signature:
[Seal]	[Seal]

#### **CONTRACT FORM (draft)**

THIS CONTRACT ("Contract") is entered into this [insert starting date of assignment], by and between [insert PA"s name] ("the PA") having its principal place of business at [insert PA"s address], and [insert Consultant"s name] ("the Consultant") having its principal office located at [insert Consultant"s address].

WHEREAS, the PA wishes to have the Consultant performing the services hereinafter referred to, and

WHEREAS, the Consultant is willing to perform these services,

NOW THEREFORE THE PARTIES hereby agree as follows:

#### 1. Services

- (i) The Consultant shall perform the services specified in Annex A, "Terms of Reference and Scope of Services," which is made an integral part of this Contract ("the Services").
- (ii) The Consultant shall provide the reports listed in Annex B, "Consultant's Reporting Obligations," within the time periods listed in such Annex, and the personnel listed in Annex C, "Cost Estimate of Services, List of Personnel and Schedule of Rates" to perform the Services.

#### 2. Term

The Consultant shall perform the Services during the period commencing [insert start date] and continuing through [insert completion date] or any other period as may be subsequently agreed by the parties in writing.

#### 3. Payment

#### A. Ceiling

For Services rendered pursuant to Annex A, the PA shall pay the Consultant an amount not to exceed [insert amount]. This amount has been established based on the understanding that it includes all of the Consultant's costs and profits as well as any tax obligation that may be imposed on the Consultant.

### C. Payment Conditions

Payment shall be made in [specify currency], no later than 30 days following submission by the Consultant of invoices in duplicate to the Coordinator designated in paragraph 4.

### 4. Economic Price Adjustment

In order to adjust the remuneration for inflation, a price adjustment provision has been included if the contract has duration of more than 18 months or if the inflation is expected to exceed % per annum. The adjustment will be made

every 12 months after the date of the contract for remuneration. Remuneration will be adjusted by using the relevant index as per following provision: "Payments for remuneration made in accordance with Clause 3 shall be

adjusted as follows:

Remuneration pursuant to the rates set forth in Annex C shall be adjusted every 12 months (and, for the first time, with effect for the remuneration earned in the [13] th calendar month after the date of the Contract) by applying the following formula:

$$Rl = Rlo \times \frac{Il}{Ilo}$$

where  $R_l$  is the adjusted remuneration,  $R_{lo}$  is the remuneration payable on the basis of the rates set forth in Annex C for payable remuneration,  $I_L$  is the official rate of inflation for the first month for which the adjustment is to have effect and,  $I_{lo}$  is the official rate of inflation for the month of the date of the Contract."]

### 5. Project Administration

#### A. Coordinator

The PA designates Mr./Ms. [insert name] as PA's Coordinator; the Coordinator shall be responsible for the coordination of activities under the Contract, for receiving and approving invoices for payment, and for acceptance of the deliverables by the PA.

#### B. Timesheets

During the course of their work under this Contract the Consultant's employees providing services under this Contract may be required to complete timesheets or any other document used to identify time spent, as instructed by the Coordinator.

#### C. Records and Accounts

The Consultant shall keep accurate and systematic records and accounts in respect of the Services, which will clearly identify all charges and expenses. The PA reserves the right to audit, or to nominate a reputable accounting firm to audit, the Consultant's records relating to amounts claimed under this Contract during its term and any extension, and for a period of three months thereafter.

#### 6. Performance Standard

The Consultant undertakes to perform the Services with the highest standards of professional and ethical competence and integrity. The Consultant shall promptly replace any employees assigned under this Contract that the PA considers unsatisfactory.

### 7. Confidentiality

The Consultants shall not, during the term of this Contract and within two years after its expiration, disclose any proprietary or confidential information relating to the Services, this Contract or the PA's business or operations without the prior written consent of the PA.

### 8. Ownership of Material

Any studies, reports or other material, graphic, software or otherwise, prepared

by the Consultant for the PA under the Contract shall belong to and remain the property of the PA. The Consultant may retain a copy of such documents and software.

### 9. Consultant Not to be Engaged in Certain Activities

The Consultant agrees that, during the term of this Contract and after its termination, the Consultants and any entity affiliated with the Consultant, shall be disqualified from providing goods, works or services (other than the Services or any continuation thereof) for any project resulting from or closely related to the Services.

#### 10. Insurance

The Consultant will be responsible for taking out any appropriate insurance coverage for their personnel and equipments.

### 11. Assignment

The Consultant shall not assign this Contract or Subcontract any portion thereof it without the PA's prior written consent.

### 12. Law Governing Contract and Language

The Contract shall be governed by the laws of Islamic Republic of Pakistan or the Provincial Government and the language of the Contract shall be English.

### 13. Dispute Resolution

Any dispute arising out of this Contract, which cannot be amicably settled

between the parties, shall be referred to adjudication/arbitration in accordance with the Arbitration Act of 1940

FOR THE PA	FOR THE CONSULTANT
Signed by Mr	Signed by
Title:	Title:

# يرويوزل لاءِ گذارش لٽنگ سروسز\_فرم جي چونڊ

روجيڪٽ مئنيجمينٽ يونٽ, سولر هوم سسٽم (Off-Grid) انرجم پهارٽمينٽ پاران كواليفائيڊ ۽ تجربيكار كاربن كريڊٽس كنسلتن رم جي گهرج آهي جيڪا گڏيل سولر هوم سسٽم (SHS) کي سپورٽ سريب فيملين لاءِ (Off \_ Grid) جيڪا بنيادي طور انٽرنيشنل منظور ٿيل كاربن فنانس مكنيزم تحت هجي. جنهن جو مقصد معياري, تصديق ٿيل گرين هائوس گيس(GHG) جي خطرن کي گهٽائڻ لاءِ نتيجي طور سولر لمر كنس جي فراهمي Off-Grid گهريلو صارفين لاءً مهيا كرڻ جنهن سان فوضل فيول بيسد انرجي سورسز جي تبديلي جهڙوڪ ڊيزل رز، ڪيروسين ليمپس ۽ غير معياري گرڊ اليڪٽرڪسٽي کي گهٽائڻ اسطي پروجيڪٽ سڌي زيت ڪلائميٽ چينج کي گهٽائڻ آهي. آهن جي يجي ۾ حڪومتِ چاهي ٿي ترگلوبلي منظور ٿيل ڪارين اي هِرُوكَ وَيْرِيغُانِيدِ كَارِيْنَ اسْتَيْنَدِرْدِ (Verrna/VCS)-كُولَدِ اسْتَيْنَدِرْدِ كُلُوبَلُ كُولُوْ جِي لاءِ ميكنيزم جي صفائي ڊولپمينٽ (جتي لاڳو هجي) يا يو كو به والنتري كاربن ماركيت پليت فارم مهيا كرن آهي.

فنسلتنسي اسائنمينت سنگل انتيگرينڊ پروجيڪٽ جي ڪرڻ واسطي فل لمريشن بين الاقوامي معيار موجب وريفائيد كاربن تس وسيلي كرن آهي. كنسلتنت كي اها ذميواري هوندي ته اهم كنيكً كرائوند ورك كهربل انترنيشنل رجستريشن، زيبليني، بيس لائين اسيسمينٽس، طريقيڪار جي چونڊ, مارڪيد بنالائسز رجسٽريشن جي تياري دستاويز تيار ڪرڻ ۾ڪارگر /ويريفڪيش اڊيز سان گڏانگيجمينٽ ڪرڻ آهي.

يٺ ڄاڻايل رجسٽريشن پروجيڪٽ کي لڳاتار اسٽيج سان جتي د وريفڪيشن ڪري سگهي معاملن، ڪمرشلائزيشن ۽ ڪارب كريدتس جو بين الاقوامي ماركيتس ۾ وكرو كري سگهي. هن استيج ي مالي اسٽرکچر کارکر دگي جي بنياد تي کنسلٽنٽ جي انٽائٽل ڪا ڪاربن ڪريڊٽس جي وڪري سان شيئر جي مطمئين هئڻ آهي ڪومت سنڌ روينيو شيئر جي فنانشل پروپوزل وسيلي منعقد ڪند<sub>؟</sub> ے ۔ ر . بی حسس پر وپر زل وسید جنهن پر حکومت کی مثانهون پر نسٹیج وصول ٿیندو . معیار جي شارٹ لسٹنگ:

مجیل سلی ساک واری ناپ نائر کاربان کریدت کنسلننگ فرم/ كنسلننت/كنسورشيم كي لاكاپيل شعبي ۾ تجربي جو ثبوت هئڻ

ii. كارگر رجستريشن گڏ سيڪيورٽي ايڪسچينج ڪميشن آف پاڪستان (SECP) يا ٻئي ڪنهن ساڳي نوعيت جي رجسٽريشن باڊي. ٽيڪس اختيارين (فيڊرلَ ۽ پراونشل) سان گڏ رجسٽريشن.

iii. سنڌ خاص طور ڪراچي ۾ آپريشنل آفيس رکندڙ هجي.

چونڊ جو طريقيڪار: ڪوالٽي ۽ ڪاسٽ بيسڊ سليڪشنَّ طريق

پروپوزل لاءِ گذارش (RFP) دستاويز

. جارى كرڻ: RFP دستاريز (EPADS) انرجي ڊپارٽمينٽ جي ويب سائي www.sindhenery.gov.pk تان 21 آڪٽويس 2025 صبح 11:00 وڳي

تائين حاصل ڪري سگهجن ٿا.

پيش كرڻ: RFP هر طرح سان مكمل كري ۽ لاڳاپيل دستاويز/ ير ٽينڪيٽ شامل ڪري آن لائين EPADS تي 21 آڪٽوبر, 2025 منجهد 03:30 وڳي تائين يا ان کان اڳ پيش ڪرڻ گهرجن. 5000 رپيا روڪ في طور هيك جانايل ايدريس تي RFP سان گڏ پيش كرڻ گهرجن.

كولن: 21 RFP آكٽوبر, 2025 تي شام 4:00 وڳي تائين كوليا ويندا.

پيش ڪرڻ, انڪوائريز ۽ کولڻ جو هنڌ:

ايدريس: پروجيك مئنيجمينت يونت، سولر هوم سستم (Off-Grid) انرجي ڊپارٽمينٽ حڪومت سنڌ واقع انرجي ڊپارٽمينٽ، ٿرڊ فلور، اسٽيٽ لائف بلڊنگ نمبر 03 ، ضياءُالدين احمد رود سامهون CM هائوس ڪراچي ئىلىنون نمبر: 02199207162, نىكس: 02199206276

شرط ۽ ضابطا:

هيٺ ڄاڻايل شرطن موجب واڪرد ڪيا ويندا.

شرطیه و تیلیگرافک RFPs

ii. مقرر تاريخ ۽ وقت کانپوءِ پهتل RFPs

پروجيڪٽ مئنيجمينٽ يونٽ سولر هومر سسٽمر (Off-Grid), انرجي بارٽمينٽ حڪرمت سنڌ اهر حق محفوظ رکي ٿي تہ هو ڪا بہ هڪ يا حوريون درخواستون ايس پي پي رولز 2010 (اڄ تائين ترميم ٿيل) رد يا منظور ڪري سگهي ٿي.

ڊپٽي ڊائريڪٽر (T) سولر هوم سستم (Off\_Grid)

INF/KRY No.2945/2025

WORK FOR SINDH JOB PORTAL BY



### GOVERNMENT OF SINDH

### **Project Management Unit**

Solar Home System (Off-Grid) ENERGY DEPARTMENT

No: PMU/SHS(Off-Grid)/SHS/05/2025

Ph: 021-99207144 Karachi. Dated: 23rd September, 2025

## REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL CONSULTING SERVICES FIRM SELECTION

The Project Management Unit, Solar Home System (Off-Grid) the Energy Department, is seeking to engage the services of a qualified and experienced Carbon Credits Consultancy Firm to support the integration of Solar Home System (SHS) for Poor Familles (Off-Grid) initiative into internationally recognized carbon finance mechanisms. The objective is to quantify, certify, and monetize Greenhouse Gas (GHG) emission reductions resulting from the deployment of Solar Home System kits in Off-Grid households. By replacing conventional fossil fuel-based energy sources - such as diesel generators, kerosene lamps, and non-renewable grid electricity — the project directly contributes to climate mitigation. To harness this impact, the Government intends to pursue accreditation under globally recognized carbon standards such as: - Verified Carbon Standard (Verra/VCS) - Gold Standard for the Global Goals - Clean Development Mechanism (if applicable), or other voluntary carbon market platforms

#### **Description of the Assignment:**

The consultancy assignment shall be undertaken as a single integrated project covering the full cycle from registration with international carbon standards through to the monetization of verified carbon credits. The consultant will be responsible for delivering all technical groundwork required for international registration, including prefeasibility, baseline assessments, methodology selection, market analysis, preparation of registration-ready documentation, and engagement with validation/verification bodies.

Following registration, the project will continue seamlessly into the monetization stage, where the consultant will undertake verification, issuance, commercialization, and sale of carbon credits in International markets. The financial structure for this stage will be performance-based, with the consultant entitled to an agreed share of revenues from the sale of carbon credits. The Government of Sindh's share of revenues will be determined through the financial proposal, with higher percentages retained by the Government receiving preference.

#### **Shortlisting Criteria:**

- A recognized, well reputed, top tier Carbon Credit Consulting Firm(s)/consultants/consortium possessing proven experience in relevant field.
- Valid registration with Security & Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) or any other similar registration body, tax authorities (Federal & Provincial).
- Having operational office(s) in Sindh preferably in Karachi.

Method of Selection: Qualify and Cost Based Selection Method (QCBS)

### Request for Proposal (RFP) Document:

Issuance: RFP document can be obtained online at EPADs from Energy Department's website i.e. www.sindhenergy.qov.pk till 21st October, 2025 till 11:00 AM.

Submission: RFP completed in all aspects and attached with relevant documents/certificates must be submitted online at EPADs on or before 21st October, 2025 till 03:30 PM. Rs.5000/- cash as fee be submitted at the address given below as RFP fee.

Opening: RFP will be opened on 21st October, 2025 at 4:00 PM.

### Place of Submission, Inquiries & Opening:

Address: Project Management Unit, Solar Home System (Off-Grid), Energy Department, Govt. of Sindh located at Energy Department, 3rd Floor, State Life, Building No. 3, Dr. Ziauddin Ahmed Road, Opp. CM House, Karachi.

Telephone Number: 02199207162, Fax: 02199206276

#### Terms & Conditions:

Under the following conditions bid will be rejected:

- Conditional and telegraphic RFPs;
- RFPs received after specified date and time; íi.
- RFPs submitted by black listed firms; and iii.
- Incomplete RFP s in any expect.

Project Management Unit, Solar Home System (Off-Grid), Energy Department, Govt. of Sindh reserves the right to accept or reject any/ all applications in accordance with the provisions given in SPP Rules, 2010 (Amended to date).

> Deputy Director (T) Solar Home System (Off-Grid)

WORK FOR SINDH JOB PORTAL BY INFORMATION DEPARTMENT

INF-KRY 2945/25





### GOVERNMENT OF SINDH ENERGY DEPARTMENT

### NOTIFICATION

No. SO (Dev.) 3-10/ADP-2875/2025-26: In Pursuance of Rule 67 of the Sindh Public Procurement Rules 2010 (Amended 2021). The "Consultant Selection Committee" is hereby constituted for selection of Consultant/Consultant firm to provide services of Carbon Credits as specified in the approved PC-I of ADP 2025-26 scheme No.2875 namely "Solar Home System (SHS) for Poor Families (Off-Grid) in Sindh under Special Initiative". The composition of "Consultant Selection Committee" and Terms of References are as under:-

S#	Designation	Status
1	Project Director, Solar Home System (SHS) for Poor Families (Off-Grid) in Sindh under Special Initiative, Energy Department, Govt. of Sindh	Chairman
2	Representative of Planning & Development Department, Govt. of Sindh (Not below the rank of BPS-18)	Member
3	Representative of Finance Department, Govt. of Sindh (Not below the rank of BPS-18)	Member
4	Representative from NED University of Engineering & Technology, Karachi (Not below the rank of BPS-18)	Member
5/	Deputy Director (Tech.), Solar Home System (SHS) for Poor Families (Off-Grid) in Sindh under Special Initiative, Energy Department, Govt. of Sindh	Member/ Secretary

#### Terms of References (ToRs)

The Consultant Selection committee shall perform the following functions:

- i. Approval of request of proposal before issuance;
- ii. Short listing of consultants in accordance with the criteria;
- iii. Evaluation of technical and financial proposals in accordance with the criteria;
- iv. Finalization of recommendation based on evaluation as mentioned at SPP Rule No.71 (3);
- v. Perform any other function ancillary and incidental to the above.

#### SECRETARY TO GOVT. OF SINDH

No. SO (Dev.) 3-10/ADP-2875/2025-26

Karachi, dated the 12th September, 2025.

A copy is forwarded for information and necessary action to:-

- 1. The Vice Chancellor, NED University of Engineering & Technology, Karachi w/r to nominate a suitable officer, well-versed with the subject matter.
- 2. The Chairman, P&D Board, Govt. of Sindh, Karachi w/r to nominate a suitable officer, well-versed with the subject matter.
- 3. The Accountant General Sindh, Karachi.
- 4. The Administrative Secretary to Govt. of Sindh, Finance Department, Karachi w/r to nominate a suitable officer, well-versed with the subject matter.
- 5. The Managing Director, SPPRA, Govt. of Sindh, Karachi.

6. All Members of the Committee.

- 7. P.S to Secretary, Energy Department, Govt. of Sindh, Karachi.
- 8. Master File.

SECTION OFFICER (Dev.)
FOR SECRETARY TO GOVT. OF SINDH